-

North Vanc_:ou\_/er
School District

the natural place to learn

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM

Meeting Place: Format and Date:
Education Services Centre PUBLIC BOARD MEETING
2121 Lonsdale Avenue Tuesday, April 15, 2025, at
Mountain View Room — 5" Floor 6:30 pm
North Vancouver, British Columbia
Estimated
Completion
Time
A. Call to Order
AA1. Acknowledgments 6:30 pm
A.2. Approval of Agenda 6:30 pm
(that the agenda, as recommended in the Administrative Memorandum,
be adopted.)
A.3. Approval of Minutes (that the minutes of the Public Meeting of 6:35 pm
February 25, 2025, be approved as circulated)
A4. Public Questions/Comments * 6:40 pm
A.5. Educational Presentation: Feeding Futures 6:50 pm
B. Action Items
B.1. Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD44-01 7:00 pm
B.2. 2025/26 Budget Consultation Update and Board Direction 7:20 pm
B.3. Proposed Revised Policy 207: Field Trips 7:30 pm
C. Information and Proposals
CA. Educational Update: Framework for Enhancing Student Learning 7:40 pm
c.2. Indigenous Education Council - Written Update 7:55 pm
C.3. Policy 605: Admission of Students to Schools - Administrative 8:05 pm
Procedures
CA4. Administrative Procedures: Travel and Business Expenses 8:15 pm
C.5 Tuesday, March 4, 2025 Standing Committee Report 8:25 pm

* Additional Community Presentations or Delegations are welcomed with advanced notice - see Policy 104: Board of
Education - Meetings and its Administrative Procedures.

Page 1 of 129



Meeting Place:

Education Services Centre
2121 Lonsdale Avenue
Mountain View Room — 5" Floor

North Vancouver, British Columbia

C.6.

C.7.

C.8.

C.9.

c.10.

Note:

Committee Reports — Written Update
e Joint Job Evaluation Committee (CUPE)
¢ Joint Education and Program Implementation Committee
(JEPIC)
Land Management — Written Update
Superintendent’s Report

Report Out — British Columbia School Trustees Association (BCSTA)
and BC Public School Employers’ Association (BCPSEA)

Trustees’ Reports/Highlights
Future Meetings
Public Question & Comment Period

Adjournment

The completion times on this agenda
are estimates intended to assist the
Board in its deliberations.

Page 2 of 129

nvsd

Format and Date:

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, April 15, 2025 at
6:30 pm

Estimated
Completion
Time

8:30 pm

8:35 pm
8:45 pm

8:55 pm

9:00 pm
9:05 pm
9:10 pm

9:10 pm




Public Board Meeting Minutes — For Approval
February 25, 2025

School District No. 44 (North Vancouver)

Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Board of Education, School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) held
in the Mountain View Room of the Education Services Centre at 2121 Lonsdale Avenue in North
Vancouver, British Columbia, on Tuesday, February 25, 2025.

PRESENT: L. Munro, Chair
A. Wilson, Vice Chair
D. Anderson
C. Gerlach
K. Mann
G. Tsiakos
L. Tumaneng

A1,

A.2.

A3.

A.A4.

A.5.

B.1.

Call to Order
Board Chair Linda Munro called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.
Acknowledgments

Board Chair Munro acknowledged the traditional territorial lands of the Skwxwi7mesh (Squamish)
Nation and selilwata?4 (Tsleil-Waututh) Nation.

Approval of Agenda
Moved by K. Mann

that the agenda, as recommended in the Administrative Memorandum be adopted.
Seconded by G. Tsiakos Carried

Approval of Minutes

Moved by G. Tsiakos
that the minutes of the public board meeting of January 21, 2025, be approved as circulated.
Seconded by L. Tumaneng Carried

Public Question/Comment Period
There were no public questions or comments received by the Board.
Educational Presentation: North Vancouver Online Learning

Superintendent Dr. Pius Ryan welcomed John McGowan, Principal North Vancouver Online
Learning and noted that it is also one of the provincial sites for French Immersion. John McGowan
presented an overview of the second year of the program cycle and model to the Board on the
North Vancouver Online Learning program.

The presenter responded to Trustee’s questions.

School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Amended Annual Budget and Internal Restriction
of Operating Surplus for Fiscal Year 2024/25

Secretary Treasurer, Jacqui Stewart introduced Helena Drury, Director of Finance to present the
Amended Annual Budget. Helena Drury highlighted the major changes in revenues and expenses
since the 2024/25 Preliminary Annual Budget was adopted on May 21, 2024. In the spring of 2024,
a budget of $251.5 million was projected and it has been revised to $264.5 million. Ms. Drury also
went over the internal restriction of operating surplus for the fiscal year 2024/25.

Page 3 of 129



Public Board Meeting Minutes — For Approval Page 2
February 25, 2025

B.2.

The 2024/25 Amended Annual Budget was reviewed by the Audit Committee on February 13, 2025
and motions recommending that the Board approve the amended budget were approved.

Staff responded to Trustees’ questions.
Recommended Motion 1
Moved by K. Mann

that the Board of Education rescind the restriction to use $2,072,966 from the Accumulated
Operating Surplus for the 2024/25 Preliminary Budget, as approved on May 21, 2024, and

that the Board of Education approve the restriction from the Accumulated Operating Surplus of
$2,072,467 to balance the 2024/25 Amended Annual Budget.
Seconded by A. Wilson Carried

Recommended Motion 2

Moved by A. Wilson

that School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Amended Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year
2024/25 be read a first time;

Seconded by D. Anderson Carried

Moved by G. Tsiakos

that School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Amended Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year
2024/25 be read a second time;

Seconded by L. Tumaneng

The Board unanimously agreed to proceed to a third reading of the bylaw.

Moved by D. Anderson

that School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Amended Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year
2024/25 be read a third time, passed and adopted.

Seconded by A. Wilson Carried

Proposed Revised Policy 212 — Animals in Schools

Superintendent Ryan welcomed Sarah Best, District Principal, Safe and Healthy Schools, and
provided the context for the proposed revisions to Policy 212. Sarah Best went through the changes
to the revised policy.

The presenter responded to Trustee’s questions.

Moved by K. Mann

that the Board of Education approve the Proposed Revised Policy 212: Animals in Schools as
attached to this Administrative Memorandum of February 25, 2025.

Seconded by G. Tsiakos Carried

Trustee Tsiakos proposed a change to the wording of the first sentence of the second paragraph
of the revised Policy 212 Animals in Schools. It will now read, “The Board recognizes that certified
or accredited assistance dogs play a role on School District sites in fostering an environment that
ensures equitable access to services, programs, and activities within the School District.” The
Board tabled a motion to approve the change proposed by Trustee Tsiakos.

Moved by G. Tsiakos

that the Board of Education approve the Proposed Revised Policy 212: Animals in Schools as
attached to this Administrative Memorandum of February 25, 2025.

Seconded by C. Gerlach Carried

Page 4 of 129



Public Board Meeting Minutes — For Approval Page 3
February 25, 2025

Moved by K.Mann

that the Board of Education approve the Proposed Revised Policy 212: Animals in Schools as
attached to this Administrative Memorandum of February 25, 2025, as amended.

Seconded by G. Tsiakos Carried

A short break was observed.

B.3.

cA.

C.2

C.3.

Cc.4.

C.5.

Proposed 2025/26 School Calendar

Assistant Superintendent, Adam Baumann provided an overview of the proposed 2025/26 School
Calendar, and the comments received. He thanked the education partners including
representatives of the North Vancouver Teachers’ Association CUPE Local 389, North Vancouver
Administrators’ Association North Vancouver District Parent Advisory Council, District Student
Leadership Council and Trustees Mann and Tsiakos for their contributions.

The presenter responded to Trustee’s questions.

Moved by A. Wilson

that the Board of Education approve the Proposed 2025/26 School Calendar as attached to the
Administrative Memorandum of February 25, 2025.

Seconded by G. Tsiakos Carried

Educational Update: Framework for Enhancing Student Learning

Superintendent Dr. Pius Ryan introduced the item. Assistant Superintendent Arlene Martin and her
team provided an update on the board approved 2024/25 Framework for Enhancing Student
Learning (September 2024), which sets the direction for North Vancouver School District on how
resources are allocated and on efforts to improve student outcomes.

The presenters responded to Trustees’ questions.

Action: Trustee Gerlach would like to have a more in-depth look at the Ministry provided data
regarding completion rates.

Administrative Procedures: Travel and Business Expenses
Board Chair, Linda Munro noted that the Administrative Procedures: Travel and Business
Expenses fall under the purview of the Superintendent and at the Board’s request are taken as

read and approved.

A request was made to discuss the Administrative Procedures at a Trustee Seminar and be brought
back to the Board at a later date.

Tuesday, February 4, 2025 Standing Committee Report

Trustee Anderson reported on highlights of the Finance and Facilities Standing Committee Meeting
of February 4, 2025.

Committee Reports — Written Update

Written updates for the Audit Committee, Inclusion Committee, and the Policy Review Committee
were included in the Board Package and were taken as read and approved. No questions were
asked.

Land Management — Written Update

A written update on current land management projects was included in the Board Package. No
questions were asked.

Page 5 of 129



Public Board Meeting Minutes — For Approval
February 25, 2025

C.6.

C.7.

C.8.

D.

Superintendent’s Report

Page 4

Board Chair Munro introduced Superintendent Ryan, who provided an update to Trustees on
events, initiatives, and programming across the school district. No questions were asked.

Report Out — British Columbia School Trustees Association and BC Public School

Employers’ Association

Trustee Anderson provided an update on the BC School Trustees Association (BCSTA) Provincial

Council.

Trustee Mann provided and update on British Columbia Public School Employers’ Association

(BCPSEA).

Trustees’ Reports/Highlights

Trustees shared their recent highlights, for activities from January 21, 2025, to February 25, 2025,
with an emphasis on their roles as school liaisons.

Meetings attended by Trustees included:

Public Board Meeting

Trustee In Camera Meeting

Trustee Seminars
Standing Committee
Audit Committee

District Student Leadership Council Board Dinner Meeting

NVTA Bargaining Sessions
BCSTA meetings including Metro meeting, Annual General Meeting, Legislative
Committee and Provincial Council

BCPSEA Annual General Meeting

North Shore Table Matters Committee

North Shore Standing Committee on Substance Use
City of North Vancouver Advisory Committee

Safe & Healthy Committee

Sustainability Committee

Events attended by Trustees included:

- Higher Grounds (Chilhinup) Café Opening
Various school visits or events: Argyle Secondary, Blueridge Elementary, Boundary
Elementary, Braemar Elementary, Carisbrooke Elementary, Carson Graham Secondary,
Dorothy Lynas Elementary, Eastview Elementary, Handsworth Secondary, Lynnmour
Elementary, Seycove Secondary, Seymour Heights Elementary and Sherwood Park

Elementary

Parent Advisory Council meeting at Braemar Elementary and presentation at Sutherland

Secondary

North Vancouver Teachers’ Association Pro D Conference at Carson Secondary School

Future Meetings

Date and Time

Event

Location

Tuesday, March 4, 2025
at 7:00 p.m.

Standing Committee Meeting:
Budget Development

Education Services Centre
2121 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver

Tuesday, March 11, 2025
at 6:30 pm :

Placeholder (if needed) Public
Board Meeting

Education Services Centre
2121 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver

Page 6 of 129




Public Board Meeting Minutes — For Approval

February 25, 2025

Page 5

Tuesday, April 15, 2025
at 6:30 pm

Public Board Meeting

Education Services Centre
2121 Lonsdale Avenue
North Vancouver

The March 11, 2025, Public Board Meeting will be cancelled as it is not needed.

E. Public Question/Comment Period

Board Chair Munro called for questions and/or comments from the public noting that in accordance
with Board policy, questions relating to personnel, negotiations or litigation must not be dealt with

in a public session.

F. Adjournment

The established agenda being completed, Board Chair Munro adjourned the meeting at 9:32 pm
and thanked those who attended.

Certified Correct:

Jacqui Stewart
Secretary Treasurer

Linda Munro

Chair, Board of Education

Date

Date

Page 7 of 129



Schedule  A.4.

of the
Administrative Memorandum

Meeting Date: April 15, 2025 Board O Board, in camera

Topic (as per the
Memorandum): Public Questions/Comments

Narration:

Prior to the Public Board Meeting, members of the public can provide comments on items related to the
agenda by emailing publiccomments@sd44.ca or calling 604-998-5100 and leaving a voice mail by no later
than 1 p.m. on the day of the meeting. All input received by the specified time will be shared with Trustees
electronically. The Board Chair will read out comments during the Public Questions/Comments at the
beginning of the meeting; however, this agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes.

The Board of Education will not respond to comments made during the Public Questions/Comments but may
direct questions to staff. Members of the public wishing to discuss their concerns with Trustees or staff may
contact them before and/or after the meeting, by telephone or e-mail.

Page 8 of 129



Schedule A.5...
of the
Administrative Memorandum

Meeting Date: April 15, 2024 Board O Board, in camera
Topic (as per the
Memorandum): Educational Presentation: Feeding Futures

Narration:
Tine Parker, District Vice Principal, Healthy Schools, will provide an update on Feeding Futures, focusing on
current efforts to enhance food access for students and families, as well as exploring new initiatives and
opportunities for community collaboration.

Attachment: Feeding Futures Guiding Principles

Page 9 of 129



Feed | ng Futu res These principles are - -

intended to guide the BRI | Education and
development of school Cotumsia | Child Care

Guiding Principles | e

not mandatory.

In practice, this could look like...

Students have Where meal payment cards are used in school stores or

access to food daily cafeterias, the same payment cards that are available to all
in an equitable students can be discretely subsidized for students in need.
14

accessible, and Using pay-what-you-can or sliding payment scale models for

; . . hot lunch days.
non-stigmatizing Offering snacks or lunch top-up baskets in classrooms for

manner. any student to access.

Asking food suppliers, distributors, grocery stores and
program delivery partners about what B.C. food options they
can provide and what B.C. foods are in season.

Assessing menus and product purchases to identify
opportunities for more B.C. foods, like everyday staples.
Checking the Feed BC directory to find B.C. food & beverage
products.

Supporting food literacy and integrated learning opportunities
to strengthen knowledge, skills, and positive relationships
connected to food and local food systems.

Feed BC provides definitions and recommended targets to support B.C. food
procurement in K-12 schools.

Conducting a scan of existing programs and systems to
identify existing resources and program gaps.

Adapting program models to suit the needs of student needs.
For example, “Grab & Go” models may work well for older
students, whereas “After the Bell” or “"Second Chance” models
may suit the needs of students in other environments.
Striving for continuous improvement by collecting feedback
on programs or testing out new pilot projects.

Incorporating more nutritious and minimally processed
foods into meal and snack offerings.

Having students and families submit requests for foods
they want to see featured in programs or submitting
family recipes.

Prioritizing time and space in the school day for eating.

Working with the district’s Indigenous Education Council
Programs centre and (IEC) to ensure that decision-making is informed by First
include students, Nation Rightsholders and Indigenous partners.
families, First Nation Involving stud_ents in s_chool food program operations (e.g.,
Rightsholders food preparation, serving, and clean-up).
g_ 4 Forming a school food committee with students, families,
Indigenous partners,

; and/or community partners to gather feedback & share
and community information.

members in Partnering with local First Nations to support special events
decision-making & in school communities.

- Partnering with conservation officers to offer local and
program delivery. traditional meats.



https://feedbcdirectory.gov.bc.ca/
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/industry/agriculture-seafood/growbc-feedbc-buybc/feed-bc-and-the-bc-food-hub-network/feed-bc-program/feed-bc-program-standards

Schedule B.1...
of the
Administrative Memorandum

Meeting Date: April 15, 2025 Board O Board, in camera

Topic (as per the
Memorandum): Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD44-01

Narration:

The Ministry of Education and Child Care has provided their written response to the 2025/26 Annual Five-
Year Capital Plan submission of June 2024.

The Ministry reviewed all 60 school districts’ submissions to determine priorities for available capital funding in
the following programs:

Seismic Mitigation
Expansion Program
Replacement Program
Site Acquisition Program
Rural District Program

The Ministry response advised of major capital projects supported to proceed to the next stage, if applicable,
as well as minor capital projects from the Ministry’s 2025/26 annual capital programs approved for funding
and are able to proceed to procurement.

The following tables provide a summary of the Ministry’s response for major and minor capital projects for
School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) for 2025/26:

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS
None approved
MINOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

New projects as approved by the Ministry’s response dated March 25, 2025.

Facility Name Program Project Amount Funded | Next Steps & Timing
Description by Ministry
Windsor Secondary School Enhancement $1,450,000 Phase 3 of envelope upgrade
Program: Exterior Wall project to be completed by
Systems Upgrades March 31, 2025.
Mountainside Food Infrastructure Program: $110,000 EV Van to be procured and in
Secondary — Delivery Vehicle service by May of 2025.
Seymour Heights Playground Equipment $200,000 Project to be designed,
Elementary Program: Universally tendered and completed by fall
Accessible Playground of 2025.
Equipment

Page 11 of 129



As a reminder, in accordance with Section 143 of the School Act, Boards of Education are required to adopt a
Capital Bylaw for its approved 2025/26 Five-Year Capital Plan and the Board of Education is now required to
pass a Bylaw to allow the North Vancouver School District to access the funding outlined in the letter.

Attachment:
SD No. 44 Capital Project Bylaw No. 2025/2026-CPSD44-01

RECOMMENDED MOTION:
that School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD44-01 be read a first time;
that School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Capital Bylaw No. 2025/25-CPSD44-01 be read a second time;

that School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD44-01 be read a third time,
passed, and adopted.

Procedural Note:
(per section 68(4) of the School Act) the Board may not give a bylaw more than two readings at any one meeting unless the members of the
Board who are present at the meeting unanimously agree to give the bylaw all three readings at that meeting.

S

North Vanc_:ouyer
School District

the natural place to learn’
Page 12 of 129



CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2025/26-CPSD44-01
CAPITAL PLAN 2025/26

A BYLAW by the Board of Education of School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) (hereinafter called the
"Board") to adopt a Capital Plan of the Board pursuant to Sections 143 (2) and 144 (1) of the School
Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the “Act’).

WHEREAS in accordance with provisions of the School Act the Minister of Education (hereinafter
called the "Minister") has approved the Board’s Capital Plan.

NOW THEREFORE the Board agrees to the following:

(a) authorizes the Secretary-Treasurer to execute project agreements related to the expenditures
contemplated by the Capital Plan;

(b) upon approval to proceed, commence the Project and proceed diligently and use its best efforts
to complete each Project substantially as directed by the Minister;

(c) observe and comply with any rule, policy or regulation of the Minister as may be applicable to the
Board or the Projects(s); and,

(d) maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the
affairs of the Project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister.

NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows:

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board approved by the Minister that specifies the supported projects in
the Ministry’s letter of March 25, 2025 from the 2025/26 Capital Plan is hereby adopted.

2. This Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-
CPSD44-01.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 15" DAY OF APRIL, 2025;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 15™ DAY OF APRIL, 2025;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 15™ DAY OF APRIL, 2025.

Board Chair
CORPORATE SEAL

Secretary-Treasurer

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District No. 44 (North Vancouver) Capital
Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD44-01 adopted by the Board the 15™ day of APRIL, 2025.

Secretary-Treasurer

Page 13 of 129



Schedule, B.2..
of the
Administrative Memorandum

Meeting Date: April 15, 2025 Board [0 Board, in camera

Topic (as per the
Memorandum): 2025/26 Budget Consultation Update and Board Direction

Narration:

At the November 19, 2024 Public Board Meeting, the Board of Education approved the budget development
consultation process for the 2025/26 Preliminary Annual Budget. The education partners, North Vancouver
Parent Advisory Council (NVPAC), North Vancouver Teachers’ Association, Canadian Union of Public
Employees (CUPE Local 389), North Vancouver Administrators’, and District Student Leadership Council
were invited to participate in discussions about the 2025/26 budget priorities at the Standing Committee
meetings and provide written submissions.

At the February 4, 2025, Standing Committee Meeting, the school district presented the context for
developing the budget including highlights from the current year and planning assumptions for next year.
Participants at the meeting participated table discussions to provide input to the Senior Leadership Team and
the Board of Education to inform budget development.

In addition to participating in in-person meetings, interested members of the community were invited to
provide suggestions for the 2025/26 budget priorities by written submission or online survey. During the
public input period, 365 members of the community responded to the survey with an additional 3 email
comments.

The focus of the March 4, 2025 Standing Committee Meeting was gathering recommendations to inform
budget development. District principals and school administrators supported table discussions regarding
school district activities and initiatives that align with the goals of public education — Intellectual, Human and
Social Development and Career Education.

On March 13, 2025, the Ministry of Education and Child Care announced the 2025/26 preliminary operating
grant based on the three-year enrolment forecast submitted by school districts in February 2025. On
average, the funding levels for enrolments or supplement for unique students increased by 1.1 percent. The
increase in funding levels provides compensation for collective agreements increases in 2024/25 and
replaces the targeted funding received by school district in 2023/24.

Following the September 1701 enrolment submission to the Ministry, typically the Ministry will revise the
operating grant based on actual enrolments and other formula driven changes. The school district's
preliminary operating budget is developed based on the preliminary operating grant as announced by the
Ministry, leaving any budget shortfall to be funded through an appropriation from the school district’'s
accumulated operating surplus.

Based on the input received from education partners and community members, the Executive Committee has
organized this input and offered recommendations to inform the 2025/26 budget development. The
recommendations were informed by the Guiding Principles that were developed to support decision making.
The school district must also take a conservative approach in preparing the annual budget given many
uncertainties such as enrolment projections, increased costs of sick leave, an operating surplus balance that

e

North Vanc_:ouyer
School District

the natural place to learn’

Page 14 of 129



is below the target threshold and the required capital contributions for the new elementary school in the
Cloverley neighborhood. These uncertainties create financial risks that must be carefully considered when
developing the annual budget and planning for the next school year.

Attachments:
A. Annual Budget Strategic Priorities - Executive Committee Recommendations
B. Standing Committee Input — March 4, 2025
C. Budget Priorities — Public Input Survey Responses

RECOMMENDED MOTION:

that the Board of Education direct staff to proceed with the development of the 2025/26 Annual Budget
incorporating the budget priorities recommended by the Executive Committee, as outlined in Appendix A.

e

North Vanc_:ouyer
School District

the natural place to learn’

Page 15 of 129



2025/26 ANNUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS

PRUDENT, MEASURED, BALANCED
‘Sustaining Momentum in Uncertain Times'

Budget Process Preamble

In an organization with finite resources, the goal of the budget process is to best align those
resources to the organization's mandate, vision, and aspirational goals. With limited resources, the
budget process helps the organization to stay focused on its highest priorities, while adjusting
resources in response to the times.

Within the North Vancouver School District (NVSD), the budget process is a catalyst to build system
cohesion; direction; as well as inter-departmental understanding and commitment. The budget
process enables North Vancouver Board of Education Trustees (the Board) to steer, adjust and
focus the course of school district while ensuring fiscally responsible and responsive management
of finite resources.

The preliminary budget for the 2025-2026 school year includes consideration of the current and
future operational needs of the school district, collective agreement requirements, community and
rights holder feedback, and Board priorities.

Context — ‘Sustaining Momentum in Uncertain Times'

The NVSD is guided by the provincial mandate for public schooling, and the North Vancouver Board
of Education’s Strategic Vision. District and school planning in alignment with the Framework for
Enhancing Student Learning (FESL), and Strategic Vision goal setting has generated positive
momentum on several educational and operational directions. District momentum is enabled by
creating a stable and predictable environment where annual adjustments allow for continued focus.
Annual adjustments are necessary to continually support the school district's work and prevent
budget and directional instability.

For the 2025-2026 preliminary budget, the impact of national, provincial, and local pressures require
careful consideration. There has been tremendous change during and post-COVID-19 with regards
to provincial funding and aspirations. We appear to be in a time of recalibration as the provincial
government requested that all Ministries review their services and focus on their core mandate. In
addition, the shifting landscape of tariffs imposed by the United States has created increased
uncertainty regarding provincial funding and costs of service and supplies.

Finally, the school district is experiencing budget pressures related to significant increases in sick
leave costs for teachers, educational assistants, and custodians along with rising costs of
employee benefit costs. The existing collective agreements expire on June 30 and the provincial
government has yet to announce the bargaining mandate for the public sector.

In addition, the school district is required to contribute $3.0 million towards the construction of the
new elementary school in the Cloverley neighborhood. The unexpected costs for new portables
and demolition of the Lucas Centre have depleted the balance of the reserves which need to be
built up to manage potential unknown risks that may arise

Page 16 of 129



Overall, a foundational lens to the preliminary budget of 2025-2026 is that we are in a fiscally
conservative and increasing uncertainty where we need to focus investments, leverage special
purpose grants while attending to a longer-term strategic outlook, and remain cognizant that more
money is not in the future. We are seeing the operational grant being increasingly needed singularly
for staffing the core.

Process — Prudent, Measured, Balanced

Given the current context, in addition to the Board's Annual Budget Consultation, Executive
undertook a review process with each school district department. This process included reviews of
departmental mandates, core services delivered, staff required to deliver services, key fixed and
variable resources, areas for focus, areas for efficiency, and areas of risk to the organization.

Through this process the following Guiding Beliefs were generated to help focus and ensure
prudent, measured, and balanced decision making that aligned with the provincial mandate for
public schooling and the aspirational goals of the North Vancouver Board of Education.

Finite resources, spend within budget,
e Prioritize the foundational needs of schools

o The Centrality of the Classroom, Class composition, ratios, enrolment management,
functional maintenance, classroom resources including projectors etc. Adherence
to these provides more balance in overall resourcing in the school district.

e Focus on initiatives that are data informed and align with mandate and aspirational goals

o Expected change over time based on current needs and priorities; consideration of
previous investments in system capacity building and alignment with FESL. What
are our current needs?

e Ensuring healthy systems and structures that maximise operational efficiency and quality

o Ongoing analysis and refinement of departmental and school processes can impact
our bottom line.

e Consider long-term stability and risk management

o Staffing ratios, ICT infrastructure, facilities health — exceeding the foundational work
needs greater scrutiny and consideration of organizational impact.

The following Budget Directions recommended by Executive are the result of the above review
process, with the intent on maintaining our educational momentum. Recommended areas for
adjustment, as well as future considerations, are done so in the spirit of maintaining our core
educational excellence and the centrality of our schools. We are also mindful of the increasing use
of special purpose grants by the Ministry of Education and Child Care to shape school district focus,
and that we are approaching provincial collective bargaining where staffing ratios and other
monetary decisions are made. We hope the Board of Education receives these Strategic Budget
Directions in the spirit in which they were developed.

Page 17 of 129



Operational Requirements

Primarily, the operating budget supports student enrolment and collective agreement provisions.
In addition to direct staffing requirements for the classroom, the operating budget must provide for
contractual obligations, inflationary pressures, exempt staff and administrator compensation,
facility maintenance, school technology and school resources. The operating budget must balance
as well as ensure monies to support unexpected needs.

Executive recommends:

e a budget direction that considers a balance of staffing and resource adjustments across
departments that share and minimize impact on direct service to schools and classrooms

e where we have operational investments and now special purpose grants have been
provided, that special purpose grants are used to offset our current investments

e those areas where staffing is determined by collective agreement that any additional staff
above ratio be reconsidered

e that organizational efficiencies be maximized

e that the impact of new services like Youth Engagement Workers, and Board-Certified
Behavioral Analysts on existing services be reviewed

e thatroles where additional allowances are provided be reviewed and adjusted in alignment
with expectations, and

e anincreased focus on the use of remedy monies to enhance support for students.

Strategic Plan Budget Directions

With the above recommendations and with prudent planning we can maintain the school district’s
focus and strategic development across goal areas. We would ask budget holders to be mindful
of discretionary costs, leverage internal expertise, remain data oriented, and build strategic
community partnerships in achieving our goals.

Goal: Student-Centred Education

Key to student-centred education is highly qualified and coordinated educational staff who are
responsive to student needs. Designing classroom instruction that supports a diversity of learners,
as well as intentional supports via Learning Services Teachers (LST), English Language Learners
(ELL) teachers, other specialists and Educational Assistants is the goal.

Executive recommends maintaining our level of service of LST, ELL in accordance with collective
agreement ratios, and to maintain Educational Assistants levels for the 2025-2026 school year.
Additional investments will be reviewed in accordance with the actual student enrolment that is
reported in the September 1707 count. It is also recommended that the school district maintain its
targeted and intensive support systems such as Choices programs, and Mountainside Secondary
as a hub to support students that struggle in the larger secondary schools.

Executive recommends setting a budget direction that maintains a cost-effective balance of
professional learning opportunities to continue to support excellence in instructional practice,
inclusive education, and compassionate systems leadership. These opportunities are to consider
principals, vice-principals, teachers, and educational assistants.

Page 18 of 129



Goal: Innovative Instruction

Innovation stems from educators working with each other in collaborative inquiry, research and the
sharing of practice. Executive recommends that resources be maintained in a cost-effective way
to continue professional networks of practice.

The school district has made significant gains in Career Education, increasing the opportunities for
students to learn within our community. There have been significant increases in opportunities
such as trade fairs, work experience, BC Skilled Trades, Artists in Residence, French Cultural Week
and Robotics competition. It is recommended that we continue to sustain this work with a focus
on community partnerships to build the longer-term efficacy of this work.

School block budgets are intended to support general school and classroom resources. This noted,
unspent resources need consideration to ensure student and teacher needs are met across the
school district. Executive recommends consideration for greater guidance on school block
budgets that align with learning priorities such as literacy, numeracy, and critical thinking.

Generative Pre-trained Transformer Artificial Intelligence (GPTAI) and other emerging technologies
are having a profound effect on education. It is recommended that resources be allocated to
maintain support for the school district’'s approach and professional understanding as well as
development in this area inclusive of assistive technologies and other adaptive learning platforms
that allow students to access text to speech functionality, enhanced translation, and language
processing.

In consideration of emerging technologies, it is recommended that the school district maintain a
continued focus on cyber security.

Goal: Welcoming and Inclusive Culture

Central to our work is creating vibrant learning communities where students and staff have a strong
sense of belonging and connection. As a diverse and changing community, the school district
recognizes the importance of teaching and proactively working to ensure a sense of belonging,
inclusiveness, and well-being in our school communities.

Executive recommends continued attention to providing learning opportunities that build a
thoughtful and balanced understanding that diversity is our strength. This includes training and
resources for staff on inclusive language, anti-racism and neurodivergent practices. In addition, the
school district's Accessibility Plan be used to identify and prevent barriers and to promote inclusion
for individuals within and interacting with the school district community.

Key to a student’s learning is the stability and consistency of a student's experience with their
teacher, and/or educational assistant. It is recommended to maintain a focus on employee
wellness, belonging and safety. In addition, the development of an attendance support process
inclusive of universal wellness support, targeted school/department supports, and individual
supports is recommended.

Page 19 of 129



Goal: Mental Health and Well Being

The NVSD has been a leader in Social Emotional Support and Mental Well Being. Universal
strategies inclusive of support services and resource tools for staff, healthy foods, physical literacy
and outdoor education, to targeted strategies inclusive of trauma informed and anxiety prevention
are recommended.

Executive recommends a continued focus on data informed decision-making with the use of tools
such as CHEQ (Childhood Experiences Questionnaire), Middle Years Development Instrument
(MDI), the Youth Development Inventory, and the McCreary Survey. Data supports specific areas
of focus including student sense of belonging, social media and electronic device management,
substance abuse education, sexual health, consent and relationships, disordered eating, and
gender specific trends.

Through COVID19, schools have been a central focus for community wellbeing. Moving forward,
and in alignment with each respective Ministry mandates, we need to work more closely with local
agencies responsible for mental health. Executive recommends a focus on identifying a continuum
of service delivery for mental health that reflects the respective mandates of the Ministry of Health,
and Ministry of Child and Family Development, and local community agencies.

Goal: Truth, Healing and Reconciliation

Implementation of Bill 40 enhances the role and influence of the Indigenous Education Council (IEC)
and augments the voice of local Nations. Executive recommends that the school district continue
to support the development of the IEC in concert with Bill 40, and to continue to build stronger
relations with Squamish Nation and Tsleil-Waututh Nation.

Indigenous student graduation rates continue to rise in the NVSD with a noted difference for
students who live on reserve. A continued focus on literacy and numeracy for on-reserve students
is recommended.

Students are more engaged in learning when they see themselves reflected in their schools and
learning materials. Itis recommended that the school district continues in its acquisition of current,
local and culturally appropriate materials for students as guided by Squamish Nation and Tsleil-
Waututh Nation.

Goal: Environmental Stewardship

The NVSD prides itself on being the ‘Natural Place to Learn’. Outdoor learning enhances personal
well-being, supports learning about our environment and fosters stewardship. It is recommended
that the school district continue building upon learning opportunities within the local environment,
such as through Cheakamus Centre programming, Salmonids in the Classroom and other
variations of outdoor place-based learning.

It is recommended to create a team utilizing Tine Parker (District Vice Principal, Healthy Futures),
Conor McMullan (Director, Educational Programs, Cheakamus Centre), and Luke Smeaton
(Manager, Energy and Sustainability) to continue to focus school district direction on outdoor
learning and environmental stewardship. Executive recommends leveraging special purpose
monies for greater intentionality in this area.

Page 20 of 129



Students feel strongly that the school district amplifies focus on climate change. To this end,
Executive recommends increased opportunities through student leadership via a number of
channels including Careers to promote increased understanding and futures of the environment
and our place in it.

Itis recommended that schools be supported and encouraged to make more regular use of outdoor
learning spaces.

Risks and Assumptions

The school district will continue to prioritize and balance the use of all resources, not just for the
current fiscal year but for the longer term. Executive uses conservative student enrolment
estimates to avoid overstating revenues, and to ensure careful stewardship of funds.

In the spirit of ‘sustaining educational momentum in uncertain times’ and in response to the core
review process by district departments, the focus of adjustments recommended for the 2025-2026
school year is primarily directed on district level services and supports. Executive hopes that with
prudent, measured and balanced decision making, we will be able to remain in a good financial
position and not require future adjustments that impact the learning agenda and related supports.

We are mindful of additional risks that can impact the financial outlook of the school district. The
main risks include:

e International education — Although we have a diversified and strong international program,
student enrolment can be impacted due to the students’ home country economics, as well
as geopolitical instability. We monitor this portfolio closely. International education
supports the school district financially and brings a diverse and valued student body into
our schools.

e Deferred maintenance — The school district, like all school districts, has a significant
amount of deferred maintenance that is not able to be addressed under the current Annual
Facilities Grant from the Ministry of Education and Child Care. The Board Policy 710:
Accumulated Operating Surplus asserts that the school district maintains between 2%-4%
of operating budget is in case there are emergent needs such as a maintenance concern
that requires resources.

e Cyber Attacks — There are a number of school districts that have experienced cyber attacks
and had to pay ransoms to restore operations. The school district has an active Cyber
Security plan and needs to maintain vigilance in this area.

e Sick Leave Costs — Post COVID19, school districts have been experiencing increasing sick
leave costs. In the North Vancouver School District these costs have gone from $3 million
to $6 million to $9 million annually. This is an increasing cost pressure for a finite budget.

e Tariffimpact on services and supplies — The unpredictability of the current tariff ‘wars’ have
an uncertain impact on British Columbia. We will continue to monitor the impact on the
school district and be mindful of how this may impact provincial monies and support to
public schools.

Page 21 of 129



2025/26 Budget Consultation Update and Board Direction
Standing Committee Feedback — March 4, 2025

MAINTAIN

Intellectual
Literacy, Numeracy, Curriculum
Enhancement

Human & Social
Health & Well-being, Safety,
Belonging

Career
Expanding career pathways, Post-
Secondary Transition

- Networking — budget to support
release for teacher networking

- Community partnerships —
Impact North Shore — having a
huge positive impact
Opportunities for community
building ie) Persian connection
groups

- Learning Rounds — schools
engaging in collaborative practise
-increase & maintain training for
staff for responding to incidents of
racism

-prioritize staffing — maintain this
& look for other cuts

- Ensure staff get adequate skill
training & look for creative
collaboration time within school
day — maybe?

- more counselling

- Teacher mentorship program —
valued but has funding changes

- Importance of strong systems to
support new families

- Food program & staffing

- Power of educators learning from
colleagues through Networks and
TL Team — connect to strong
primary & intermediate team
(starting with intermediate)

- Could be afterschool?

- Could be resources are

offered?

Wouldn't work for it if it was an
option
- Less folks attending afterschool
Will it impact the consistency of
literacy that needs to be done
related to literacy?
- Elementary/Secondary SVOS
currently at schools — great to
bridge the gap

- Good to have a plan/process to
share back at schools. This year
this has been helpful with the new
plan — time to co-plan, co-teach
with the PIN/IIN neps

Networks

Connecting pathways for students
of all skills/ability and careers that
connect them

- Strong people in the roles that
coordinate and create
opportunities

- supports & continue exposure to
a variety of careers & all levels 5-7
fair

- UFLI Literacy support

- targeted Indigenous literacy
support

- secondary food program

- Squamish language classes —
expand

- Staff wellness — culture &
connection

- Youth engagement workers

- Dennis Thomas — mini
entrepreneurship program for
Indigenous students

- Community partnerships for
career planning — show achievable
future goals and inspire
(particularly for Indigenous
secondary students)

Page 22 of 129




2025/26 Budget Consultation Update and Board Direction
Standing Committee Feedback — March 4, 2025

ADAPT

Intellectual Human & Social Career
Literacy, Numeracy, Curriculum Health & Well-being, Safety, Expanding career pathways, Post-
Enhancement Belonging Secondary Transition
- Large numbers of newcomers in - Review caseloads for Indigenous
grades 10-12, what does ELL Support Workers

support look like for students
arriving later in high school

Focus on reliable information
source — managing misinformation
Science and reading & structured
literacy considering student with
dyslexia targeted

- Role of IEC strengthening this
partnership
- proactive staff wellness

For Indigenous Ed:

- more literacy/numeracy teaching
support — younger grade
intervention needed at each school
- space a constraint for Indigenous
literacy support a challenge and
Indigenous support at Secondary
(ex; Carson has Indigenous support
room but no other schools do)

- Indigenous support workers more
funding needed

Make space to create student sense
of belonging in meaningful way

- CLF 10 can be hard where offered
online

- How to indigenize CLE courses?

- Go through the motions vs
meaningful learning

- Reconnect value to this work

- Reduce the stigma on “trades”
roles and promote the exposure to
fantastic careers in our community.
- How can we support accessibility
in all areas SEL & Career for
pathways forward

- Resources for Anti-Racism to
include an indigenous lens

- Building/enhancing generative &
responsive school cultures

- recognizing the value of this in
supporting complex learning
environments

- equipping teachers with skills &
tools to "keep-up” with tech in the
class (ie: Al)

- systems to keep up with ELL
Learners & coordination of teams —
direct impact on teacher/staff
mental health

- Need to understand underlying
issues relating to the challenges &
how these impact

- recognize importance of sense of
connection felt by staff & how this
influences attendance/engagement
etc.

- Importance in supporting staff with
tools to maintain inclusive culture

- Encouragement of remedy use

- consistent assessment practises
across grades especially in
secondary

- Keep the connections growing
between elementary and secondary
especially literacy & numeracy from
K-12

- How are we developing
assessments that are accessible to
all learners?

- Building joy & feelings of success
of all learners

Page 23 of 129




2025/26 Budget Consultation Update and Board Direction
Standing Committee Feedback — March 4, 2025

NEW

Intellectual
Literacy, Numeracy, Curriculum
Enhancement

Human & Social
Health & Well-being, Safety,
Belonging

Career
Expanding career pathways, Post-
Secondary Transition

- Technology for students who need
access to speech to text, text to
speech, ELL translation

- Consider support & training for
staff to support ELL learners with
disabilities

- Assessment in different languages
to tease out root of a students
needs

- Bridging to the community to invite
students into school

- Indigenous Support Workers
bridging between home & school

- increase IEW role in Elementary —
what role can they plan in
supporting the transition to high
school

- proactive strategies & supports for
families regarding healthy
communication & collaboration
-targeted funding to support
accessibility implementation &
accessibility plan

- Review SOFI report — reducing
expenses-where is the money going
& is there anywhere to save?

- Teaching interview skills for all
students

- supports to build their preparation
& opportunities to practise

- Funding for SOGI & Anti-Racism
training for staff to build comfort &
confidence given current climate

- District supported “Queen Prom”
-Anti-Racism teacher network

- How to continue to understand &
support workplace environment

- developing new structures &
systems to support school teams-
greater alignment with best
practises

- recommendation of male BSW or
to support new families —
particularly Persian community
-what are hidden efficiencies in
system that can address challenges

Culinary program & Carson

Youth engagement workers for
elementary

VCC Professional chef 1 program @
Carson

Expand career/trades programs
Expand ITA courses

Shared education within careers

- Increased training in specialist
staff (LSW, OG LST)

- Training opportunities and
utilization of EA staff (secondary) —
literacy and numeracy

- opportunity for EAs to have a
responsibility may add a feeling of
value to the role; lead to higher
attendance

- Literacy Intervention at secondary
- discipline oriented teaching;
teaching reading in other subject
areas and being explicit

Culinary program
Seaspan

Transitions b/w grade 8 — grade 7,
University/college — Grade 12

- Grade 10 focus point of transitions
- English language learners continue
to be a focus

Page 24 of 129




2025/26 Budget Consultation Update and Board Direction
Standing Committee Feedback — March 4, 2025

Intellectual
Literacy, Numeracy, Curriculum
Enhancement

Human & Social
Health & Well-being, Safety,
Belonging

Career
Expanding career pathways, Post-
Secondary Transition

- Review of teacher leaders

- More opportunities to reconnect
students with local culture &
learning
- Community connections
- Course credit for
communication
connections/cultural
practises (longhouse etc.)
- more staff in schools
lead to less absences
*demands on teachers
*more complex
*support teachers
- EA mentorship — EA network?

Efficiencies:

- Look at number in classes in
French Immersion (small student
numbers; can we make it more
efficient?)

- solar panels to save electricity
-Custodian staff cuts

Re-allocation of EAs during sick
days/absences — often no need to
replace (using FOS model)

- Are the number “correct” regarding
office, admin, CUPE etc according to
school size

Page 25 of 129




North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

School
community?

Include all

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Areyou a that apply.
1 Test response to survey

Test response to survey

Support for kids with neurodivergence adhd, autism and encouraging kids to advocate for themself. Parent/Guardian Sherwood Park

1. Before deciding on paper where to spend money, | would encourage this team to physically visit each school and make an assessment - indoors

AND outdoor. There are many things that need updating to ensure school safety and longevity.

2. Finding a way to spark more interest from the teachers and admin support to get involved with extra curricular activities. It seems like there's

increasingly LESS engagement from the staff and more reliance on parents, or simply none at all from either side - leaving the kids as a last priority. Eastview

4 This needs to be a more shared responsibility. Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Please make a separate quiet room for kids on Autism spectrum and others who may need breaks to continue with school work. Don’t make the Westview

5  parents take them home just because they need a break. Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Ensure funding so that supports/staff in place for ALL students (not just highly complex students) - EA support, SLP support, LST support, LSW Westview

6  support, Counselling support. Staff member Elementary;

With cost of living high on the North Shore and not a huge population growth, | don't see enrollment being very high. Even in current schools

today, enrollment is not facing the same stress as other municipalities. With a slow growth in densities, and even many families on the NOrth Shore

shifting to more private school facilities, | don't feel operating budgets need to grow substantially compared to what we have projected today. | do

realize that we are understaffed and underfunded that needs to be corrected, but that is due to cost of living on North Shore. Hopefully those can

be corrected in the near term as a catch-up process. The North Shore is an attractive place to live and getting people to live here shouldn't be a Montroyal
7 * concern outside the cost of living. | believe that we are still a bit behind on infrastructure and staffing, but feel that is changing slowly. Parent/Guardian Elementary;

In terms of other operating costs, funding for more facilities that provide support for families is necessary. Whether these are after school
programs, or even extra-curricular, those revenue streams can be increased and not always operating in a deficit. There is a demand and need, and
families are willing to pay more. The median income of families is one of the highest in lower mainland, if not in Canada, and the families are
demanding of facilities and increased programs, and even at additional costs. | find that even across community infrastructure, the costs are so
low, that it surprises me that we are always operating in such a deficit. Increase the revenue streams through higher prices, as demand is there,
and it will make families happier. That will increase wages and revenue streams, but provide more services to families. We're stuck in this cycle.
One aspect is the construction of the Handsworth Turf field, which | saw is on the DNV budget, and needs appropriate support from SD44. It would
be a high-use facility, and | would even pay additional levies as a future family of that school to get it expedited. Also, the additional revenue you

7  could generate after-hours or weekends from it could be substantial. The lack of facilities like these that could generate revenue 7 days a week is

cont mind boggling, and the premiums you could charge could help to fund future upgrades.

Focus on inclusion support systems. Materials needed to help students be successful (sensory equipment, sensory tools, visual etc)s s increase

budget for staff to be educated on AAC devices and other supports.>x¥ More training for EA's to be familiar with all types of learning students. Windsor
8  Bring back therapy services for students (SLP, OT) and not just a consultation basis or a biweekly (Elementary schools). Parent/Guardian Secondary;
9  Focus on core learning objectives and preparing students for the real world. Please spend less time on social issues. Encourage merit. Parent/Guardian Braemar
Dorothy
10 ensure funding for SPARKS program, teacher supply expenses, and facility maintenance and improvement at SD44 schools. Parent/Guardian Lynas

* 7 Full text replaces page 26 of Board package, as at April 15, 2025

Page 26 of 129



North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

Which school
community

are you a
part of?
Include all

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a that apply.

Would like more funds to provide kids with safe ways to play outside.
Sherwood Park Elementary- the back playground is a disaster. In the past 10 years almost everything has broken on it and nothing is being done to

replace it. The kids no longer enjoy playing on it since there aren't enough places to play that aren't shut due to broken pieces. They usually love to Sherwood
play in the forest around the school but due to budgets cuts there are never enough supervision aids so they always close the forested areas at Park
recess. | have had 3 kids attend this school and each year there is less fun and enjoyment for the kids as they are always taking things away from Elementary;S
the kids. It's very sad to see how little this is prioritized for the kids. The "talk is that outdoor education is good for kids" but your actions show you eycove
really don't follow through with those ideas because you won't fund anything for these kids. It's shameful that you expect the parents at this school Secondary;Wi
to fund their own playground equipment, you should be funding these items appropriately to allow kids to grow and learn at their best. The ndsor

11 playground is used by the whole community so everyone's taxes should be used to fund these spaces. Parent/Guardian Secondary;

We have taken too many international students at argyle secondary school. | understand that they generate revenue. But current Canadian/ local
students were given courses at 730am on the mornings to accommodate the influx of international students. If international students must be part
of the budget then you must give them the early morning classes. Our local community school taxes should not pay for kids outside of Canada to
displace our local kids. My daughter’s learning support class was canceled as it was scheduled at 730 am and other kids dropped it. She now does

not have the support she needs. If we must have international kids. Local kids she be prioritized and they should have to flex into remaining spaces. Argyle
12 Not the other way around. MANY local parents feel this way. Parent/Guardian Secondary;
Argyle
The rise in administrative costs has increased disproportionately and resulted in a bureaucratic and ideological system across all levels of Secondary;Ro
13 * governance, including the school system. Parent/Guardian ss Road

More outdoor learning! I'd love to see North Vancouver start dedicated outdoor programs/schools and also more outdoor educating for all
programs. There are so many perfect spaces on the North Shore for this - and many great examples of outdoor based elementary and secondary ~ Parent/Guardian Ross Road

14 learning throughout the province that this could be modelled on. and Staff member Elementary;
Seymour
There needs to be increased advocacy to government for funding education. Obviously you have to work with what you have but | truly hope Heights
15 further advocacy is being done on how hard it is to do your jobs with such a limited budget. Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Handsworth
16 Put money towards supports such as LAC Parent/Guardian Secondary;

Please consider a reduction in the number of PD days if this is even something which may be addressed. The added childcare costs are a significant
expense, and teachers, whilst busy should be prepared to find the time for additional development at times which do not conflict with the delivery

of the curriculum. Failing this would it be possible to ensure PD days are in part covered by subsititute teachers, or that optional additional classes Ridgeway

17 on PD days are delivered. Thankyou for your consideration. From one knackered parent! Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Ridgeway

18 Focus on subjects that will provide students with opportunities in life: math, computer classes, sciences Parent/Guardian Elementary;

* 13 Full text replaces page 27 of Board package, as at April 15, 2025

Page 27 of 129



North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

Which school
community

are you a
part of?
Include all
What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a that apply.
Is there a robust mechanism for gathering feedback from various stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers, and community members?
Engagement is crucial for ensuring the plan reflects the diverse needs and aspirations of the community it serves.

How is the progress of the plan being monitored and evaluated? Clear metrics and accountability measures help ensure that goals are met and Carisbrooke
19 adjustments can be made as needed based on data-driven insights. Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Cleveland
20 Adding a music program for all grades. Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Seymour
Heights
Elementary;
Windsor
21 Go cards for all students, all students should have access to public transportation. Parent/Guardian Secondary;
Funding more spaces for over crowding. Build a new highschool in the district to help with the increasing population. More money for resources Argyle
22 for teachers and staff. Staff member Secondary;
More capital to spend on replacing old shop class equipment and machines. Some machine stations are over 30 years old and cannot be repaired if Sutherland
23 broken again. Technology is also out of date. Staff member Secondary;
Montroyal
24  Please fund the Mentorship Program for new teachers so that it can start up again. Staff member Elementary;
Windsor
25 More spending on push-in support. We are in desperate need of more EAs Staff member Secondary;
Westview
26 Schools and Parking Parent/Guardian Elementary;

| recommend you put more money into staffing teachers and EA's. Smaller classes leads to a more productive, calm learning environment.
Balancing classes to reduce remedy is a major issue at the secondary level leading to classes that are generally less conducive to providing a
comfortable learning environment. School based admin should be given more time and/or reminded that they should be making determined

efforts to balance classes as much as possible. Again, with more teacher staffing/lower class sizes, this would be less of an issue. Sutherland
27 Come up with a planned agreement to link unused/donated remedy to teacher hiring. Left over remedy is detrimental to student success Staff member Secondary;

Take a close look at district programming, services and process deliveries; make sure each step of the delivery creates value in one way or another. | am not part

l.e., can unnecessary administration tasks be removed? Are all district services (beyond 'core') doing what they are intended to do with measurable of a school
28 outcomes to demonstrate success? Staff member community;

Page 28 of 129



29

30

32

33

34

35*
36

37

North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget?

I would suggest developing policies and standards of how the funding will/can be spent. For example, how many devices will each staff member be
assigned and based on what criteria (e.g., the tasks they are required to perform in their role, FTE/hours of work, etc.). Once policies are
developed, they should be communicated to the community by each school/department's supervisors. The policies and standards should also be
written down somewhere (such as internal staff portal) so the staff members could refer to them if they have questions or need clarifications.
Centralizing spending could be very beneficial (instead of each school/department making their own purchases) for better buying power with
discounts or opportunities for negotiation. It would also help the school district to standardize and provide consistent experience across the school
district, especially to the staff members who move around in the school district.

Hopefully more of the budget goes toward bettering the buildings of the schools.

Allocate resources toward post-secondary planning / strategizing, and properly prepare counsellors to support students in this area.
Audit and/or incentivize teachers to punctually attend their scheduled tutuorial times.

More LST time at schools to deal with increase needs of students, reduce class sizes and composition so as not to exceed limits in the Collective
Agreement, therefore no remedy time is needed

Give more to schools and spend less at the board and on initiatives that don’t directly benefit students. Smaller class sizes, more Counsellors, and
more LSTs.

Non-enrolling teachers such as ELL teachers and LST's that do not have caps on their caseloads. The needs keep growing, and the staff are
overwhelmed with what is required of them.
School resources for Online Learning

Class sizes continue to be an issue. Students designated with IEPs are placed in classes over the prescribed limits for composition and inclusion; thus generating copious amounts of remedy minutes. These
remedy minutes accumulate and while TOC are booked, they are often assigned to other roles as there is often not enough teachers and TTOCs to support this system. Thus teachers are unable to make use of
their remedy minutes. It's uncompensated work. Even when this system functions, a TOC is often unprepared to support each class's specific needs and a teacher must do additional work for catching up on
this missed time due to remedy. It's increasingly difficult to create meaningful relationships with students when teachers are stretched in this way. When teachers are stretched and meaningful relationships
not in place, they're unable to address subtle yet significant issues like racism. I've seen examples of students not feeling comfortable in classrooms due to racism from their peers and school communities
(both in Elementary and Secondary levels). Rather than address the systemic nature of racism (giving support and space for teachers to unpack these very important situations), we're hoping that short-term
consequences will be sufficient. As a result, BIPOC students feel like their feelings and concerns are not cared about, because the racism continues. They're removed from classes (which are meant to be safe
spaces) and begin a degenerating relationship with their class, their school and their own learning, because trust in the system is lost. Trust is already vulnerable considering the history of trauma for
Indigenous students at the hands of education in the form of Residential Schools. We look at data for Indigenous student success, but the stories behind this data reveal that it's in the every day practices and
daily interactions that dictate a healthy connection with schooling. Hoping that one or two Indigenous literacy teachers (who can only see students in short-term sessions because the need is everywhere in the
district) can solve the issue of systemic racism is tokenizing and an impossible task. Indigenous student success in literacy is rooted more in healthy relationship with learning than reading and writing skills.
Indigenous student success in graduation is rooted in healthy relationships with learning more than with grades in grad required classes. While this work is extremely helpful, it's not going to be enough. It's not
an example of Reconciliation when the work is solely placed on the Indigenous individuals rather than the whole. My budget recommendations involve more support on the whole (holistic) system. We're in
need of more educational spaces, we're in need of more teachers. We're in need of more Indigenous teachers. Prior to COVID restrictions, the NVSD Indigenous Education department had Indigenous resource
teachers employed to support Anti-Racist and Decolonial work. This is a worthy goal to work towards. It's also a responsibility of education. Our current political landscape is a reflection of our duties to raise
an equitable and just society where human rights are valued and protected.

* 35 Full text replaces page 29 of Board package, as at April 15, 2025

Page 29 of 129

Are you a

Staff member

Parent/Guardian

Parent/Guardian

Staff member

Staff member

Staff member
Staff member

Staff member

Which school
community
are you a
part of?
Include all
that apply.

| am not part
of a school
community;
Larson
Elementary;

Handsworth
Secondary;

Sherwood
Park

Highlands
Elementary;

Cleveland
Elementary;
North

Brooksbank
Elementary; Carson
Graham Secondary;
Eslha7an;
Lynnmour Xa7elcha
Elementary;
Ridgeway
Elementary;



North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

Which school
community

are you a
part of?
Include all

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a that apply.

We need more guidance, support, and community discussions around the use of screens, smart phones, and digital media for our children. We
should be bringing in professional speakers to facilitate discussions on these topics. Digital literacy and mental/social/emotional health should be
priorities.

Additionally, there needs to be a greater transparency and information sharing with parents. At the elementary school level, meaningful feedback
on how our children are doing is almost non-existent. The end-of-term learning summaries do not meet the needs of parents. Any assessments

done in the classrooms should be fed back to parents. Sherwood
We should be striving to achieve academic excellence and to equip our children with the independence and skills they need to be active, thriving Park
38 members of our society. Parent/Guardian Elementary;

Ask schools what they need. We have been trying to get new desks to replace ones that are unrepairable and apparently none exist. Our Block
Budget stays the same year after year even though the cost of everything goes up and up. We use our school supply money (from parents) to

purchase art supplies when the school used to supply the art room. We are asked not to use the staple feature on the copier because the staples Montroyal
39 cost so much and they come from our block budget. With inflation, the block budget doesn't supply schools sufficiently. Staff member Elementary;
Montroyal
40 To increase the amount of money in the budget to match the inflated costs of everything. Staff member Elementary;
More funds directed to supporting students and classrooms, rather than top-heavy expensive positions at the board office, teacher- leaders,
assistant positions, glossy posters, expensive speakers, etc. More funding for basic learning resources, support for neuro diverse students, and Montroyal
41 basic equipment such as student desks. Staff member Elementary;

| strongly advocate for increasing the allocated time for Elementary Vice Principals. Providing them with more dedicated time would allow them to
mentor new teachers, co-teach, lead student leadership initiatives, and better support the growing and complex needs of students in our
elementary schools.

There is a significant disparity in administrative and leadership time between secondary and elementary schools. Yet, we know that early
intervention is crucial, making it essential to prioritize funding at the elementary level. The same goes for counselling. Elementary counsellors need
more time in schools to proactively meet the needs of students, not just put out fires.

Additionally, we need an elementary equivalent to Mountainside. With rising mental health and behavioral challenges, dedicated support
structures at this level are critical.

While there is a strong emphasis on literacy, we must ensure adequate funding to support it effectively. Currently, Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions

are lacking due to limited resources. Increased budget allocations in this area would help bridge the gap and provide the necessary support for Ridgeway
42 student success. Staff member Elementary;
Ridgeway
Elementary;
*Reliable tech (student computers and iPads) provided by SD not individual schools Eastview
43 *Online provincial curriculum apps (eg. IXL) and Canadian (NOT UFLI) supported by board office Staff member Elementary;

Page 30 of 129



44 *

45

46

47

48

49

North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a
As a parent invested in the development of well-rounded young minds, | urge the Board of Education and the Senior Leadership Team to allocate next year’s

budget toward strengthening core academic skills, financial literacy, and creative development.

1.Academic Excellence — Prioritize improvements in math, reading, and comprehension to ensure students build strong foundational skills essential for lifelong

success.

2.Real-World Readiness — Expand financial literacy and entrepreneurship classes to equip students with practical skills, preparing them for responsible money

management and future career opportunities.

3.Specialized Instruction — Hire dedicated gym, art, and music teachers to provide expert guidance in these areas, fostering physical health, creativity, and well-

being, rather than relying on generalist teachers to cover these subjects.

4.Technology & Innovation — Consider integrating modern tools and hands-on learning, such as STEM initiatives, coding, and project-based learning, to enhance

student engagement and prepare them for the evolving job market.

5.Efficient Resource Allocation — Ensure budget decisions focus on maximizing direct student impact, reducing inefficiencies, and making investments that

enhance both learning outcomes and teacher effectiveness.

A well-balanced, forward-thinking budget will help develop not just good students but capable, creative, and financially literate individuals ready for the

challenges of the future. Parent/Guardian

Please do not underfund learning support for children with extra learning needs. |1 am aware of budget cuts to EA's in the schools - reducing the
support that children with learning disabilities and designations receive. Please make budget cuts to discretionary programs (Outdoor School,
school uniforms, field trips) before making cuts to programs supporting children with special needs. Also, create programming for gifted children

in high school. Parent/Guardian
Community
Handsworth turf and track should be a priority for Handsworth PHE, schools teams, community teams and health and rec. member
Literacy support for Indigenous Education Parent/Guardian
Property maintenance matters, don't let budget shortfalls impact students, invest in SPARKS Parent/Guardian

Funding is needed towards the Learning Services department; with the number of the neurodivergent populaton rising in each classroom there is a
need for more support in the classrooms. Moreover, there is a need for training staff to support students with a complex profile who can support
with inclusion. Staff member

* 44 Full text replaces page 31 of Board package, as at April 15, 2025

Page 31 of 129

Which school
community
are you a
part of?
Include all
that apply.

Blueridge
Elementary;

Windsor
Secondary;

Braemar
Elementary;
Handsworth
Secondary;

Eslha7an
Dorothy
Lynas
Elementary;
Carson
Graham
Secondary;
Larson
Elementary;M
ountainside
Secondary;



50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a
We need more support for our students. An EA in every classroom as Eby promised, needs to happen, especially in the Primary years. We are

Which school
community
are you a
part of?
Include all
that apply.

always in "the process" of getting behaviour and learning needs assessed and designated so our classrooms go unsupported even though the need Dorothy

is there. It is typical to have 3 or 4 undiagnosed children in our rooms that will be designated by the time they reach the intermediate grades but Lynas

until then, we are on our own! Staff member Elementary;

We are worried. At Argyle we are a growing school. It is a great place to be and there is something wonderful about knowing that everyone is

doing their best. But, our library is closed one block all year long-hurting everyone. We have students taking classes in a foyer-type area above the

library. Classes are over capacity and every possible place is used for student learning and yet our enrollment still goes up. Our admin team is

doing their best. But, they just can't keep up. The same can be said for our counsellors. Our support staff in the office are rockstars and they can't

keep up. It's the same with the Library Assistant and our EAs. With limited hours and limited bodies a limited amount of work can be done. We

are well aware that we are entering a period of austerity, but with the price of supplies and resources increasing, and our staffing and spacial

problems this is a big concern. How can we continue provide a great standard of education with less? We are already struggling. We need more

admin blocks, especially more blocks for our CUPE staff in support roles like supervision aides, the office, WEX, and the library. Having less at this Argyle

point is actually really worrisome! Staff member Secondary;

The school district has made progress towards having a base level of technology for every classroom, but many classrooms are still waiting. For I am not part

each classroom that doesn't already have one, | recommend we prioritize the installation of a projector and a Wi-Fi access point. There also needs of a school

to be continued funding to replace these as they reach the end of their service life. Staff member community;
Ridgeway

Be flexible. Staff member Elementary;
Eastview
Elementary;
Montroyal

Although the number of ELL students have increased substantially over the last year, there is no budget allocated to schools to be used with ELL.  Staff member Elementary;
Queensbury

Inclusion and more classroom support, more specialist support (i.e.psychologists, psych eds) and resources for learning support Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Canyon
Heights

Fund actual PHYSICAL resources for teaching and learning. More LST and counselling. Staff member Elementary;

VP release time should also be based on school size not averages

More support is needed for behaviour and needs (1 EA assigned to class, exclusive from one-one EAs, 1 behaviour support worker per school,

more SLP time) it is hard to function at the level we have now! Sutherland

More money is needed to go towards resources for classrooms (textbooks, guide books for teachers: 2 per school is not enough) Money should be Secondary;

given depending on the size of the school not district averages Parent/Guardian Ridgeway

| am sure they is money that can be cut at the top to help fund this and Staff member Elementary;

Page 32 of 129



North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

Which school
community

are you a
part of?
Include all

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a that apply.

School staffing is critical to provide the education to our students. We are short numerous positions throughout our District. And at our school, our
administration runs a school larger than one of our high schools with less administrative, clerical, counseling staffing hours as well. Ridgeway
58 Supply budgets are also important as our paper budget is not what a school our size needs. Staff member Elementary;

1'd say that physical safety in terms of street safety and grounds is most important for next year's budget. Much work is needed in our school
grounds, field drainage, playground repairs, and building repairs, including roof drainage. We get a torrential waterfall coming off the roof of our  parentand PAC  Cleveland

59 school on rainy days which is a huge hazard in the school yard, and the edge of the field turns into a giant lake. Thank you for hard work. co-chair Elementary;
Hiring more Learning Support Workers (they specialize in Orton Gillingham). Early intervention is imperative, and is could help reduce the costs of
LST later. Also, I'm frustrated that LSWs are in the CUPE union and underpaid for their specialty, but that is probably a provincial issue and not a Upper Lynn
60 NVSD one. Staff member Elementary;
Get rid of district principals. Such a waste of money. Take the money and put it into resources for classrooms. There is no reason to have such a top- Windsor
61 heavy administration. Why do we have two assistant superintendents? They have very little effect on student learning. Staff member Secondary;
District-wide literacy programming and complete resources based on evidence (e.g., UFLI for all primary classes, ONLit-type program for all
intermediate grades) for consistency across the district. More funds for safety equipment (e.g. hard hats for staff in the event of an earthquake) Queensbury
62 and time for emergency training at schools. More FTE for Elementary VPs :-) Staff member Elementary;
Our schools are drowning with complex cases, many coming from other countries. We need significant budget for Learning Support, LST, Norgate
Counselling, and SLP. Xwemélch’stn
SLP should be divided by the needs of the schools, not by student population. SLPs should divide the time based on caseload. It is inequitable when Community
63 students in small diverse communities can’t access supports but students in other schools can because the cases there are less complex. Staff member Elementary;
Students need more access to specialized support like counsellors, psychologists, learning support teachers, behaviour support workers, and Argyle
learning support workers. Our school building requires better maintenance including updating (a larger gym, more washrooms, double paned Secondary;
windows, insulation, improved and consistent heating, air conditioning, etc...), beautification (inside - painting the staff room, cleaning the skylights Ross Road
64 and windows and outside - landscaping incl. planting), and pest management (getting rid of the mice). Staff member Elementary;
More resources and technology in the hands of students. Canyon
A greater emphasis on inclusive spaces such as playground equipment a wheelchair can access or under cover play areas for our raining "wet" Heights
65 coast. Staff member Elementary;

Page 33 of 129



North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

Which school
community

are you a
part of?
Include all

What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Are you a that apply.

To support equitable access to education, and the inclusive education that is being offered in the district the budgets in school do not reflect the
needs of the Learning services departments. They need to have a budget that can meet the ongoing needs of the students. This could include
resources that match the child’s interest that can then be linked to the curriculum, Multiple iPads that can be used to access information within the
classrooms when writing alongside their peers, and resources that can be used as manipulatives throughout the year. Learning services are unable
to add a parent cost to their subject course outline. Therefore, we are reliant on block budget and there is not a line in budget to support the work
that is done within these departments. Teachers are continually told that there is not the funds for those resources, and we find ourselves having
the only source of money Is what we fundraise ourselves. Technology allows inclusion to be far more seamless and to happen within the classroom
alongside peers unfortunately where parents are unable to afford to buy the technology for the student’s we find ourselves with two iPads and

approximately six laptops, therefore we are having to use desktops that are not housed in the classrooms, meaning we need to withdraw children Sutherland
66 from the classroom to access the technology. True inclusion costs money and that needs to be a priority in the budget. Staff member Secondary;
Sherwood
Please take the time to study the numbers of our ELL population. If we want to support ELL students and families we need to be allocated more Park
67 hours. At this moment, teachers are stretching their schedules , as much as they can, but they cannot do magic to provide support. Parent/Guardian Elementary;
Braemar
68 Please prioritize adding additional school counselor time. Students and teachers need more help addressing mental health issues in the classroom. Staff member Elementary;
Handsworth
69 Direct funding into schools to directly support students; fewer district and/or director positions Staff member Secondary;
| am both a parent and staff member, working at more than one school in the district. | would like to see Libraries well funded to continue to be Cleveland
70 able to provide EDI collections. | would additionally recommend prioritizing counselling services for students. Staff member Elementary;
There should be some planning for overcrowded schools and how they are going to address this. The new elementary school being built will most
likely feed into Sutherland but the school is already bursting with no extra room for the specialty programs. Spaces are being encroached on each Sutherland
71 year and it makes it difficult to offer the standard of education that is expected. Staff member Secondary;
We need to encourage more teachers to join the profession to combat the rate of burnout that many are feeling, ensuring that teachers are given
an equitable workload in class composition with appropriate prep time in keeping with the best practices of other provinces (25% prep time at the Sutherland
72 secondary, middle, and elementary levels) to provide the best education that students deserve. Staff member Secondary;
I think there should be incentives for staff to NOT use sick days. So many staff members are away these last few years that | can imagine it is
affecting the SD's budget. Incentives could be 1) allowing a staff member to 'cash' in 4 sick days for a personal day. 2) allowing a staff member to Sutherland
73 'cash'in 4 sick days for a credit towards health and wellness activities like a gym / yoga pass or ski pass. Staff member Secondary;

Page 34 of 129



North Vancouver School District
Detailed Survey Responses - 2025/26 Budget Priorities
Comments are shared as received, personal details have been removed

Which school
community
are you a
part of?
Include all
What guidance would you provide the Senior Leadership Team and the Board of Education concerning next year's budget? Areyou a that apply.
Boundary
Elementary;
Sutherland
Secondary;
Larson
Elementary;
Help support high school sports programs in schools. Give staff days in liu to encourage staff mem